Council

AGENDA

Kent County Council

REGULATION COMMITTEE MEMBER PANEL

Friday, 6th February, 2009, at 2.00 pm Ask for: Andrew Tait
Medway Room, Sessions House, County Telephone 01622 694342
Hall, Maidstone

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Membership

Mr M J Harrison (Chairman), Mr A D Crowther (Vice-Chairman), Mr | S Chittenden.
Mr J A Davies, 1 Labour Group Member.

2. Declarations of Interest by Members and Officers for items on the agenda for this
meeting

3. Application to register land known as "The Market Square" at Aylesham as a new
Village Green. (Pages 1 - 32)

4. Application to register land at Montefiore Avenue, Ramsgate as a new Town
Green. (Pages 33 - 56)

5. Other items which the Chairman decides are Urgent

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership
(01622) 694002

Thursday, 29 January 2009



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

Application to register land known as ‘The Market Square’ at
Aylesham as a new Village Green

A report by the Director of Environment and Waste to Kent County Council’s
Regulation Committee Member Panel on Friday 6™ February 2009.

Recommendation: | recommend that the County Council informs the applicant
that the application to register the land known as ‘The Market Square’ at
Aylesham as a new Village Green has not been accepted.

Local Members: Mrs. E. Rowbotham Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land known as ‘The
Market Square’ at Aylesham as a new Village Green from local resident Mrs. E.
Madden (“the applicant’). The application, dated 27" November 2007, was
allocated the application number 598. A plan of the site is shown at Appendix A
to this report and a copy of the application form is attached at Appendix B.

Procedure

2. The application has been made under section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 and
regulation 3 of the Commons (Registration of Town or Village Greens) (Interim
Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2007. These regulations have, since 1%
October 2008, been superseded by the Commons Registration (England)
Regulations 2008 which apply in relation to seven ‘pilot implementation areas’
only in England (of which Kent is one). The legal tests and process for
determining applications remain substantially the same.

3. Section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a Commons
Registration Authority to register land as a Village Green where it can be shown
that:

‘a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful
sports and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

4. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests:
* Use of the land has continued ‘as of right' until at least the date of
application (section 15(2) of the Act); or
* Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than two years prior to the
date of application, e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (section
15(3) of the Act); or
« Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended before 6™ April 2007 and the
application has been made within five years of the date the use ‘as of right’
ended (section 15(4) of the Act).

5. As a standard procedure set out in the regulations, the County Council must notify
the owners of the land, every local authority and any other known interested

Page 1



The application site

6. The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) is known locally
as ‘the Market Square’ and consists of a rectangular area of grassed open space
that is surrounded on all sides by a road known as Market Square and situated in
the centre of the village of Aylesham.

The case

7. The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has
become a village green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the local
inhabitants for a range of recreational activities ‘as of right’ for well in excess of 20
years.

8. Included in the application were 10 user evidence questionnaires from local
residents asserting that the application site has been available for free and
uninhibited use for lawful sports and pastimes over the last twenty years and
beyond. A summary of this user evidence is attached at Appendix C.

9. In addition, a number of photographs dating back to 1947 were submitted in
support of the application (demonstrating the historical use of the land by the
people of Aylesham) as well as several newspaper cuttings from the 1950s which
refer to the application site as ‘the village green’.

10.Fifteen letters of support, many from longstanding residents of the village, were
also included with the application. These letters confirm use of the land by local
residents for a range of recreational activities over a long period.

Consultations

11.Consultations have been carried out as required and the following comments
have been received.

12.Aylesham Parish Council has written in support of the application on the basis
that registration of the land would protect the green for future generations to use.

13.ClIr. Keen also wrote in support of the application. She explains that the
application has been made to preserve the green space in perpetuity because
local residents have recently had to fight to save the land from being turned into a
car park. Clir. Keen is of the view that the application site has been the
centrepiece of the historic village form many years and it is essential to preserve it
as a public open space.

14.0ne local resident also wrote in support of the application. In his view, the

application for village green status must be granted on the basis that the
application site has been in public use for over 70 years.

Page 2



Landowner

15.The application site is owned by Dover District Council. Mr. G. Mandry (Principal
Solicitor) has objected to the application on behalf of the District Council.

16. The objection is made on the following grounds:

¢ Any activities which have taken place on the land have been with the express
or implied permission of the landowner by virtue of a series of short-term
leases granted to the Parish Council since at least the mid-1970s. Such use
has therefore not been ‘as of right’ and is incapable of giving rise to any rights.

e The land is held in the housing portfolio and the public have been permitted to
use it by way of licence with byelaws having been made to regulate use of the
application site.

e The user evidence is unclear and not sufficient to show that the relevant legal
tests have been met.

17.In support of the objection, the District Council has supplied copies of leases
dating back to 1977 as well as associated correspondence.

Legal tests

18.In dealing with an application to register a new Village Green the County Council

must consider the following criteria:

(a) Whether use of the land has been 'as of right'?

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, neighbourhood or a neighbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

(e) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up until
the date of application or meets one of the criteria set out in sections 15(3) or
15(4)?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:
(a) Whether use of the land has been 'as of right'?

19. The definition of the phrase ‘as of right’ has been considered in recent High Court
case law. Following the judgement in the Sunningwell” case, it is now considered
that if a person uses the land for a required period of time without force, secrecy
or permission (nec vi, nec clam, nec precario), and the landowner does not stop
him or advertise the fact that he has no right to be there, then rights are acquired
and further use becomes ‘as of right’.

20.In this case, there is no evidence that use of the application site has been with
force or in secrecy. Although there are hedges bordering the site, there is a Public
Footpath crossing the centre of the site and access via four designated points.
None of the witnesses refer to any specific fences or barriers to prevent access.

" R v. Oxfordshire County Council, ex p. Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 WLR 160

Page 3



In fact, the District and Parish Councils have actively promoted use of the land by
entering into formal leases for the purpose of public recreation.

21.However, there is a central issue concerning whether or not permission (in any
form) was ever granted to local residents for the use of the land. Permission (in
the context of a Village Green application) can take four forms:

(i) Express permission which is communicated to users — for example a notice
posted on site expressly permitting use of it for recreational purposes or
other express permission being given by words or in writing.

(ii) Express permission which is not communicated to users — for example in
circumstances where there existed an express licence between landowner
and local authority making the land available as recreational open space.

(iif)  No express permission but overt actions taken by the landowner — for
example, where the owner takes sufficient positive and unequivocal steps
to inform the users that use is impliedly permitted and may in due course
be terminated.

(iv)  No express permission and not communicated to the public — for example,
where land is held by a public authority under certain statutory powers for
the provision of land for public recreation.

22.In the case of Market Square, the Parish Council has entered into a series of
short leases with the landowner (the District Council) since at least the 1970s.
The relevant 20 year period for the purposes of the Village Green application is
1987 to 2007. This period is covered by four separate five-year leases dated
1983, 1989, 1992 and 1998. In each lease, there is a clause which restricts the
use of the land to ‘recreational and amenity purposes’. A copy of the 1998 lease
is attached for reference at Appendix D (the relevant clause is 4.7).

23.The use of the land for recreational purposes by the local residents has therefore
been by virtue of the relevant clause in the lease granted to the Parish Council by
the District Council (as landowner). Although the existence of the lease has not
been communicated to users, this nonetheless amounts to an express permission
and falls within the second category of permission listed at paragraph 21 above.

24 .Since the effect of the lease is to grant permission to the local Parish Council to
make the land available to the local residents for recreational purposes, this is
sufficient to render use of the application site by the local inhabitants ‘by right' and
not ‘as of right'. Therefore, it is not possible to conclude that use of the land has
been ‘as of right'.

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

25.Lawful sports and pastimes can be commonplace activities including dog walking,
children playing, picnicking and kite-flying. Legal principle does not require that
rights of this nature be limited to certain ancient pastimes (such as maypole
dancing) or for organised sports or communal activities to have taken place;
solitary and informal kinds of recreation are equally as valid.

26.In this case, the evidence demonstrates that a number of recreational activities
have taken place on the land, including nature-watching and playing with children.

Page 4



27.However, several of the user evidence forms refer to use of the land ‘to cross the

village’ or as a thoroughfare to reach village shops. Such use would be consistent
with the use of a Public Right of Way and the exercise of existing rights
associated with the recorded Public Footpath running across the centre of the site
but would not be sufficient to give rise to general rights of recreation for Village
Green usage.

28.1t is unclear from the user evidence submitted on paper as to what percentage of

use has been attributable to local residents exercising a linear right of passage on
foot (i.e. associated with the Public Footpath) and what percentage has been use
associated with a general right of recreation (i.e. as a Village Green). There is
also reference amongst the user evidence to attending fetes, boot fairs and other
community events. Such formal events are likely to have been arranged with the
permission of the Parish Council and therefore attendance at these events would
have been by implied permission and could not give rise to Village Green rights.

29. Therefore, although it is clear that the application site has been used by local

residents generally, on the evidence available it has not been possible to
conclude that the application site has been used for the types of activities that
would give rise to Village Green rights.

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, neighbourhood or a neighbourhood within a locality?

30. The definition of locality for the purposes of a village green application has been

31.

the subject of much debate in the courts and there is still no definite rule to be
applied. In the Cheltenham Builders? case, it was considered that *...at the very
least, Parliament required the users of the land to be the inhabitants of
somewhere that could sensibly be described as a locality... there has to be, in my
judgement, a sufficiently cohesive entity which is capable of definition’. The judge
later went on to suggest that this might mean that locality should normally
constitute ‘some legally recognised administrative division of the county’.

In this case, the applicant has specified the locality at Part 6 of the application
form as being ‘Aylesham Market Square and surrounding shops and houses’ and
has helpfully marked on the plan accompanying the application the addresses of
those having provided user evidence.

32.As stated above, the locality for the purposes of Village Green registration should

be some recognised administrative unit; the definition of locality requires a degree
of precision and it is not sufficient to simply specify a collection of roads or a local
community that is not formally recognised. Although the user evidence
demonstrates use of the application site from those whose homes are situated
immediately opposite the land, there is also evidence from people living further
afield within the village. This is consistent with the Parish Council leasing the land
for ‘recreational and amenity purposes’ for the benefit of the village residents as a

’R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council (2003) EWHC 2803

Page 5



whole and not simply those living in the immediate proximity. | therefore consider
that the correct locality is the administrative parish of Aylesham.

(d) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

33.1In order to qualify for registration, it must be shown that the land in question has
been used for a full period of twenty years up until the date of application. In this
case, the application was submitted in 2007 and therefore the relevant twenty-
year period (“the material period”) is 1987 to 2007.

34.From the user evidence submitted, there appears to have been use of the land
over a considerable period dating back far beyond 1987, and in some cases as
far back as the 1930s. There is little doubt from the evidence presented (including
the old photographs and newspaper cuttings) that the application site has been a
focal point for the village and used as an open space for a considerable period. In
addition, all of the users state in their questionnaires that they have witnessed
other people using the land for a range of recreational activities.

35. Therefore, the application site has been used for a period of over 20 years.

(e) Whether use of the land by the inhabitants is continuing up until the date of
application?

36.The Commons Act 2006 introduces a number of transitional arrangements
regarding the actual use of the land in relation to the making of the application to
register it as a Village Green. These are set out at paragraph 4 above.

37.In this case, use of the applications site has not ceased, nor is there any
suggestion of any interruption to use prior to the making of the application.
Therefore, it appears that use of the land has continued up until the date of
application and as such it is not necessary to consider the other tests set out in
sections 15(3) and 15(4) of the Act.

Conclusion

38.In order for the application site to be registered as a Village Green, the
Registration Authority has to be satisfied that each and every one of the legal
tests set out above is met. It is not sufficient that merely some of the tests have
been met or that the land has always been considered locally to have the
attributes of a Village Green.

39.In this case there are several problems which lead to the conclusion that the
necessary tests have not been met. The most significant of these is that use of
the land is not considered to have been ‘as of right’ during the material period due
to the existence of the lease between the Parish Council and the landowner which
makes express provision for the use of the land for recreational purposes.

40.Even if further user evidence were produced to support the application (and
overcome the deficiencies with regard to the type and quantity of use), the
existence of the leases would, by itself, present a ‘knock-out blow’ to the
application. Therefore, it would appear that the relevant legal tests cannot be met

Page 6



Recommendations

41.1 therefore recommend that the County Council informs the applicant that the
application to register the land known as ‘The Market Square’ at Aylesham as a
new Village Green has not been accepted.

Accountable Officer:

Dr. Linda Davies — Tel: 01622 221500 or Email: linda.davies@kent.gov.uk

Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221511 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the Environment and Waste
Division, Environment and Regeneration Directorate, Invicta House, County Hall,
Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for further details.

Background documents

APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site

APPENDIX B — Copy of application form

APPENDIX C — Table summarising user evidence

APPENDIX D — Copy of 1998 lease relating to the application site

Page 7




62360000508 APPENDIX A:

Plan showing application site
(land known as ‘The Market Square
at Aylesham)

152200900000
152200 900000

623600.005000

Land subject to village green application
W - at 'The Market Square', Aylesham

Scale 1:1250




Commons Act 2006: Section 15
Application for the registrati

APPENDIX B:
Copy of application form

Village Green

Official stamp of registration authority

indicating valid date of receipt: Application number:

KENT COUNTY COUNGIL Register unit No(s):
REGISTRATION AUTHORITY

3 0 NOV 20607

S595.

VG number allocated at registration:

(CRA to complete only if application is successful)

Applicants are advised to read the ‘Guidance Notes for the completion of an Application for the Registration of

land as a Town or Village Green’ and to note the fallowing:

« Al applicants should complete guestions 1-6and 10-11.

+ Applicants applying for registration under section 15(1) ofthe 2006 Act should, in addition, complete questions 7-8.
Section 15(1) enables any person to apply to register land as a green where the criteria for registration in section

15(2), (3) or (4} apply.

e Applicants applying for voluntary registration under section 15(8) should, in addition, complete question 8.

1. Registration Authority

Note 1 To the

Insert name of
registration

authority. i{%_t C,O UM\{ Qi COLW (_O,,(,(,

Page 9




Note 2

if there /s more than
one applicant, list afl
names. Please use a
separate sheet if
necessary. State the
fuil tife of the
organisation if a body
corporate or
unincorporate.

If question 3 is nof
completed alf
correspondeance and
notices will be sent to
the first ramed
applicant.

Note 3

This question should
be completed ifa
solicifor is instructed
for the purposes of the
appiication. if so all
carrespondence and
nofices will be sent fo
the person or firm
named here.

2. Name and address of the applicant

Name:

ERZHAETH  MADDEN

Full postal address:

A
M hESHAM

K NT

ConaTonN DRUWE o o

Postcode@‘f% ) By, Z

Telephoné number:
(incl. nationa! dialling code)

0120 WO (DA

Fax number:
(incl. national dialling code)

E-mail address:

eliaaboth o madktlen 2 @ phweernet

3. Name and address of solicitor, if any

Name:

Firm:

Full postal address:

Post code

Telephone number:
(incl. national dialling code)

Fax number:
{incl. national dialling code)

E-mail address:

Page 10




Note 4

Forfurther advice on
the criteria and
qualifying dates for
registration please see
- section 4 of the
Guidance Notes.

*Section 15(6)
‘enables any period of
statufory closure
where access lo the
land is denied to he
disregarded in
determining the 20
year period.

4. Basis of application for registration and qualifying criteria

If you are the landowner and are seeking voluntarily to register your land
please tick this box and move to question 5.

Application made under section 15(8):

If the application is made under section 15{(1) of the Act, please tick one of
the following boxes to indicate which particular subsection and qualifying
criterion applies to the case.

Section 15(2) applies: V4

Section 15(3) applies:

Section 15{4) applies:

If section 15(3) or (4) applies please indicate the date on which you consider
that use as of right ended.

If section 15(8)* applies please indicate the period of statutory closure (if
any} which needs to be disregarded.

Page 11




Note 5

The accompanying
rap must be af a
scale of at lsast
1:2.500 and show the
fand by distinctive
colouring fo enable to
it fo be clearly
identified.

* Oniy complete if the
Jand is already
registered as commoit
fand.

Nofe 6

it may be possible fo
indicate the localffy of
the green by reference
fo an administrative
area, such as a pafish
or electoral ward, or
other area sufficiently
defined by name (such
as a viflage or streef).
if this is nof possible 2
map should be
provided on which a
lacaltty or
neighbourfiood is
marked clearly.

Tick here if map attached: \/

5. Description and particulars of the area of land in respect of which
application for registration is made

Name by which usually known:

e Mofiel Squee  Aylesham

Location:

Cerfie og@ Doepan Gus NoRTE o SoUiT™
ANLESHAM

Shown in colour on the map which is marked and attached to the statutory
declaration.

Common land register unit number (if relevant) *

6. Locality or neighbourhood within a locality in respect of which the
application is made

Please show the locality or neighbourhood within the locality to which the
claimed green relates, either by writing the administrative area or
geographical area by name below, or by attaching a map on which the area is
clearly marked:

m&gﬁ m\élttcie& : | (
Op}k G Motk 3}&@@/ auncl |
%b&wt@w@ﬁm% ops + houseck. .

Page 12




Note 7

Applicants shouid
provide a summary of
‘the case for
registration here and
enclose a separate full
statement and all other
evidence including any
witness statements in
support of the
application.

This information is not
needed if a Jandowner
is appiying fo reqister
the land as a green
under section 15(8).

)

7. Justification for application to register the land as a town or village
green

(Gen Julh sodemarC encleeaal ./

Mo Maef Sopae Uglesham
nay ban usel oe e (Gesks G
Hp eordence Qrved , 6d A ulllage
ede amel scetal Qe
/\Xfm developrs H Kaocl  have not
Hellon  cour hssﬁbﬁd i h@ﬂ%@gﬁ Ot
consideardion ﬂ/\ex& L@|WJ@ dGOdOﬂQ
e oo ap o arongy plece Ty
Doour Distact  hocal Piewn 336

feb 2008 |
@6 Creah o'mc% o lopleameed ~uctruable

Commumnciy| + oot o e |
L ena A auspa olhel Tham
: 5@”}5?”5%% ook g excls o)
T A
Al Auchen and oldor geope

Ouv vllage Wt ainch Mgoeks ,JH/“S
AN auect o Weat G@ +Ho, b(“&%@
CUA™ U\UC@C&Q, QM .

Page 13




Note 8
Plpase use a separate
sheet if necessary.

Where reievant include
reference totitle
numbers in the register
of title held by the
Land Registry.

If no one has been
identified in this
section you should
wnife “none”

This information is not
needed if a landowner
is applying to register
the land as a green
under section 15(8).

Note 9

List all such
declarations that
accompany the
application. if none is
required, write ‘none”.

This information is not
needed if an
appfication is being
made to register the
fand as a green under
section 15(1).

Note 10

i ist all supporting
documents and maps
accompanying the
application. if none,

" wrife “none”

Piease use a separafe
sheet if necessary.

8. Name and address of every person whom the applicant believes to be
an owner, lessee, tenant or occupier of any part of the land claimed to
be a town or village green

Yover Jistact  Came

9. Voluntary registration — declarations of consent from ‘relevant
leaseholder’, and of the proprietor of any ‘relevant charge’ over the land

10. Supperting documentation
it Mop o g e Wortet %%(M\e Ctg}/?(ia\/mfm Zoedoit A
| \ndboqﬁp\f\ %ﬂg Warbe Spuae Qcﬂ%\@m
X 7/
g Sept D

hoAterS
Bolden ce @u.@tmm@@ M 6@%@@7{1 O

Page 14




Note 11

I there are any other
matters which should
be brougfi fo the
aftention of the
registration authorfty
{in particularif a
person inferested in
the land is expected to
challenge fhe
application for
registration). Full
defails should be given
here or on a separate
sheet if necessary.

Note 12

The application must
be signed by each
individual applicant, or
by the atthorised
officer of an applicant
which is & body
cotporate or
unincomorate.

11. Any other information relating to the application

Q@fﬁfsam d}y o pocds, Yo to-
Gl Lot o o ce c” heded CU?
o ecrpoail Jit\%\ o %‘(dﬂ Coxx Cf L

fecame. <ﬁl Ho ey oRceo citolorl
aied golics e wwac, ST o

Date: = NG AT Hoo™

Signatures:

7 A4 :

REMINDER TO APPLICANT

You are advised to keep a copy of the application and all associated documentation.

Applicants should be aware that signature of the statutory declaration is a sworn statement

of truth in presenting the application and accompanying evidence. The making of a false
- statement for the purposes of this application may render the maker liable to prosecution.

Data Protection Act 1998

The application and any representations made cannot be freated as confidential. To determine the

application it will be necessary for the registration authority to disclose information received from

vou to others, which may include other local authorities, Government Departments, public bodies,

other organisations and members of the public.

Page 15




Statutory Declaration In Support -

" Insert fult name
(and address f not
given inthe
application form).

? Dejete and adapt
as necessary.

3 Insert name i
Applicable

* Complete onty in
the case of
vofuntary
regisiration (strike
through i this is not
relevant)

To be made by the applicant, or by one of the appficants, or by hisor
their solicitor, or, if the applicant is a body corporate or unincorporate,
by its solicitor, or by the person who signed the application.

lg L?V !@d@ﬂ@{/{/ .1 solemnly and sincerely declare as follows:—

1.2 | am ((the person (brieGRtfeRegorg) who (has) (iiawjsigned

the foregoing application)) ((thé sclitifade (the applicant) {* dngibf e
aphidaits)).

2 Thefacts set out in the application form are to the best of my
knowledge and belief fully and truly stated and | am not aware of any
other fact which should be brought to the attention of the registration
authority as likely to affect its decision on this application, nor of any
document relating to the matter other than those (if any) mentio hed in
parts 10 and 11 of the application.

3. The map now produced as part of this declaration is the map
referred to in part 5 of the application.

4. | nereby apply under section 15(8) of the Commons Act 2006 to
register as a green the land indicated on the map and that is in my
ownership. | have provided the following necessary declarations of
consent.

(i) a declaration of ownership of the land;

(i) a declaration that all necessary consents from the relevant
leaseholder or proprietor of any relevant charge over the land have

Cont/

{

Page 16




4 Continued been received and are exhibited with this declaration; or
(iii) where no such consents are required, a declaration to that effect.

And | make this solemn declaration, co.nscientiously believing the
same to be true, and by virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act 1835,

Declared by the said ¢~ |/ (LW

" i o St S’ S

& '. __ ng\/ @L\k\)@m\&b@ﬂ) Signature of Décfaranf
s JFCI day of MOV QQCJ? ) |

Before me * /%b\ﬂ‘\

MRS S. SELSBY
F. INST. L. EX.
"GARDNER CROFT————
% CASTLE STREET
. ANTERBURY
Address: el 5T 20H

Signature:

Qualification:

* The-statmﬁfy"ﬂéf:?a:?éﬁbﬁ must be made before a justice of the peace, practising
solicitor, commissioner for oaths or notary public.

Signature of the statutory declaration is a sworn statement of truth in presenting the
application and accompanying evidence.

REMINDER TO OFFICER TAKING DECLARATION:

Piease initial alt alferations and mark any map as an exhibit

Wl dau plaase dalie ento ecnsoston ~hat o0 o uillage e Oeplophem
ne -clo wf hope b@ugﬁe "“'ét)m ex Dashen ¢ e e G o ‘%W“LSS‘GW
o eaths, Map @ Secue owel b haskniel o Snecessl bueners pecyl
dho Wi on e o\\\ﬁﬁ‘@‘l cm@k Jﬁw@ l@, heae e Same o ey 1 cny aCYE
Gelebewm o cped place

% i-’qffc kO-)C)"@Y\, ( &g@ iz:jc:wTC )




DIENSCIY  TIHN T

'{"j =30
LAy

(:;‘ ’Y\__\;,_ P MV IS
".\"y\;‘/;s e

20
28 ¢

goses) AR R L

T

Paaa 18
—age—1o

RS MMEES

W RUClE

LPISABLE) Housing,



7. JUSTIFICATION FORAPPLICATION TO REGISTER THE
LAND AS ATOWN OR VILLAGE GREEN

The Market Square in Aylesham is not large enough to be used
for sports,and so our claim for village green status lies in
pastimes, in the past as the submitted evidence will prove and
also to the present day. At the heart of the Village the market
square has been used over the years for fetes, carnival, church
activities, religious groups, children playing, a meetting place
for teenagers most are non-disruptive a few of course are not,
the planting of commemarative trees by school children, some of
these children are now fourty years of age , the twinning society
have also planted a tree with there French visitors, and also
individuals to remember loved ones. When Snowdown Colliery
was closed in 1987 a wheel from the head gear was presented to
the village and installed in the square it is a reminder of all the
villagers who made Aylesham their home through good and bad
times a reminder of why the village came into existence part of
our history and heritage . At the western end of the square there
are two areas of sheltered acccomadation for the elderly ,and
families with handicapped children, the market square gives
them an enjoyable green area beutifull in the spring when the
cherry trees and horsechesnut trees are in blossom, a safe place
for the village people to stroll and enjoy. It is an area to meet up
with other people while out shopping or walking the dog,to say
hallo how are you and of course to exchange the goings on of
village life, to linger a while on a good day, or sit on a bench and
watch the world go by, the surrounding hedge gives the
area an enclosed feeling of safety away from the traffic , as you
can see the market square is appreciated by all. We would like to
- submit the market square Aylesham to be given village green
status to protect it from being developed now or in the future.
Aylesham is to be enlarged and developed in the near future the
people are not generally against the development but the green
areas are to be built on , the market square itself has been chosen
in the outline plan for an area of parking once this lovely site
has been breached it will be lost for ever.

Page 19




APPENDIX C

dence

ising user ev

Table summar

‘apud jo esuas & sepirosd pue Ajlunwiwos ay} e Ag paldolus st ease ay) Jey) sajels pue (aoususjueLl

pue saal} Jo Bunued ay) Buipsebal) pue| ay) Jo AI0)SIy 9y} sulejdxs aYg IS0 |IDUN0Y Yslied Jowlio) B S| apong ' "SI

‘usaIb abe||in oy} aso| 0} sweys jealb e eg pinom )| 'sieak OF — OF I1SE| 2U) JSAD saIiAl0e Buisiel

-puny pue $a18) 104 pasn Udaq sey alenbg ay) Jey) sule|dxs pue IO [BAIUIED) BU} JO JUSpPISald U} S p|ald 'S "SIA

"8snsiw 0} uado pue| ay} sAes| Aew sjesodosd Buiuued

9y} Jey} suIsou0D sey pue sieah AueLU J0) SSIJIAIOE [BUOHESIDSI J0) PASN USSQ Sty Udalb ay) jey) sajels sploudiay 1 I\

‘gjdoad Auew Joy Juswiolus jea.b sapiaoid pue| syl pue

splig ay) pasy 0] Ajiep alenbg jexuep sasn.ayg "0q Jenoqg Aq pasodoud Bulag suonelsye sy Jsuiebe sjsajold uebiop g "SI
"2JMny 8y} ul saljAloe 1o} 8sn 0} weysalAy Jo sjdoad ay) Jo) Y8| g pINoYs }| "S18Y} PAXIOM OUM SS0U} JO AloWwaw Ui AJIjj00 UopMOoUg
SU} Wioly sweo Y ping 0} pasn sjelalew ay | s Buol e lo} eaie Bunesw e useq sey aienbg Joyiep sS4} Jeuyl soleis spiemp3 ] A
yied Jea e ol pauwiny 8q jou pinoys | ‘ied jeoo) e spasu abejjia SY} M3IA 18y Ul 8snedaq uoilealdde ay) suoddns Buoiswiy UsIp
‘pafosap aq jou pinoys pue abe||ia U} jo MEdY snbiun B SWwloy pue| 8y} 8y se sniels uaaub abejia oy uonesidde

sy} suoddns eH ‘pajueid pue papaes Buleq aienbg 1exiely oY) S||ED8) PUB £ 90UIS WeysajAy Ul paAl| sey Jauosied q JIN

:POPN[OUl SpEL SJUBLIWOY PaAeoal alam Hoddns Jo siops] §1 ‘SA0ge S0USPIAS JasN aUj} 0} UORIPPE U]

UHON
URIpIYopueiB pue uaIpiiyd o} usag $910} | (sieod gg) TN flemod 'g o
sey pue abig|a sy} JO Lesy 8l 8| puk| 3] SUON Areg pue sue; Buipuspe ‘sswed Buileld | 1002 - €561 uewlog | -sipy pue apg (N
(sieak gg) SasoN 'Y %
“BUON Apisap uaipliya yym Buifeld pue Bunilepn | 2002 — 2661 MBIA BIEA | sy pue [T
"0)e sajal ‘s[eAllled B Buiyequns (sieak J) uebiop
‘SjUsAS AUNWIWOD JOl pash uaaq sey pueT 'SUoN freqg ‘Buiyoyem ainmeu ‘Buisienog | 2002 — 0002 | Lnoo Anseq v AN
"aj| abej|ia Jo Wed jeibajul ue st pue aleybnoloy) yeam 12d abe||In s30.0 (s1esah /q) anuanay J2JISsap
B sk pasn usaq sAemie Sey pue| syl ‘suoN ssul) g-2 0} ‘@2IAIRS aosiuIe ‘sa1e) abe|ia | 2002 — 0561 sl[[emLIoD | "SAIN
: UHON
Buixea) ‘Busielnos (sseaf 12) anuany BIBLUENIN
‘GBI 0} 96| USamlag pue| ash Jou pI{] "2UON Apeq ‘sdoys 0} sseooe ‘Bunjjem Boq | /002 - 6961 ueuo( 0 SIP
. "BSI0ISX2 1o} |00yoSs abe||In (s1eahd g|) aoe|d Ayuenow
8y} Jo asn oy} Joj 3doy eq pINoYs pue| 8yl "sUoN Aeq 9s10Jaxa 'slje} jooq '9)9d | 2007 — L66L 1oMJep ‘0N
-aoe|d Bunoesw e s| i pue
uaIpjiys yum Aejd op ajdoad Jnq senialoe Buods plIys
_ pioy o} ybnous sbie| Jou s1 ) — abeya syl w e se BuiAeld ‘sdoys o1 yem Ajep {s128A 0Q) =1 Mg] usppep
aoed aAoE UB Yonwl Alaa S alenbs 1axJely SUON PAPEETTY ‘Buisijeioos pue spusyy Bunasy | 2002 — LPEL UoIsIucy 3 sIN
-a1doad abeja 8u3 0 9,0F INCAE | (SIEsA om) 1se| 10} _ sdoys o0 yem Ajlep EEELE ) anuaAy “lauooie
Aa siseq Ajlep e uo pash s) alenbg 19xe suoN | Alep ing) Apospm ‘spuauy Bugsaw ‘||eqyoo) Bulfeld | 2007 — €561 uewnoq SN
siseq (sieak g/} peoy apang
Arep e uo pue| ay) Buisn ojdoad Jayjo meg "suoN shep 150 sdoys ssaooe pueyiom ol 0B o) | L00Z — ZS6L MBIA S[BA =R
"SISE( abe||ia Jo sued Jaylo 0] ssedoe | (sieaf Qo) peoy sally
Alep e uo pue| ay} buisn apdoad Jayjo meg SUON Aleq ‘saye) Buipusye ‘Bop Bunieps | 2002 — 9¥61 suUasND N CSIN
SINIWNNOD ¥IHLO ANV 3SnN asn 40 3sn 40
Ol S1NIHH3LIT /SADNITIVHD AININDIN SAILLIALLOY AORAd SS3UaaAv JINVN



Pl

DATED L Touw

APPENDIX D:
Copy of lease with Dover District Council

(dated 14™ July 1998)

DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL

-~ and -

THE PARISH COUNCIL OF AYLESHAM

LEASE

- of -

Market Square Aylesham
in the County of Kent

J W, Horne BA

Solicitor, Head of Legal Services
Dover District Council

White Cliffs Business Park
Dover

Kent

CT16 3PJ

LDOCVAYLEPC-L

Page 21




LEASE dated e Sy 1998 between

(1) The Landlords: DOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL of White Cliffs Business Park
Dover Kent CT16 3PJ and whoever for the time being owns the interest in the
property which gives the right to possession of it when this Lease ends
{2) The Tenants: THE PARISH COUNCIL OF AYLESHAM and whoever for the time
being is entitled to the property under this Lease:-
1. IN this Lease: |
1.1 A reference to an Act of Parliament refers to that Act as it applies at
the date of this Lease and any later amendment or r_e—enactment of it-
from time to time in force

1.2 A right given to the Landlords to enter the property extends to anyone
the Landlords authorise or allow to enter and includes the right to bring
workmen and appliances onto the property for the stated purpose

1.3 AUTHORITY given to enter the property-after giving notice extends in
case of emergency to entry after giving less notice than specified or
without giving any notice |

1.4 WHENEVER there is more than one tenant all their obligations can be
enforced against all of the tenants jointly and against each individually

1.5 ANY agreement or obligation on the part of the Tenants not to do any
act or thing {however expressed} shall be construed as including an
agreement or obiigatioﬁ on the part of the ;Fenants not 1o aliow or
suffer that act or tﬁing to be done or to take place

1.6 ANY obligation to pay money refers to a sum exclusive of value added
tax {“VAT"} and any VAT chargeable on it is payable in addition

1.7 THE Plan is the plan attached to this Lease

Page 22




IN exchange for the obligations undertaken by the Tenants:

2.1

2.2

THE Landlords let the property described below {"the property”) to the
Tenants for five years starting on 19 September 1998 and ending on
18 September 2003 ("lease period”) on the Tenants agreeing to pay
rent calculated in accordance Vwith the First Schedule

THE property is the two plots of {and situate at the Market Square

Aylesham Kent as shown edged red and marked Plot 1 and Plot 2 on

the plan

THE property is let subject to the rights contained in the Second Schedule

THE Tenants agree with the Landlords:-

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

TO pay the rent by equal quarterly instalments in advance on the 19th

day of March June September and December in each year of the lease

period

NOT to reduce any payment of rent by making any deduction from it or

by setting any sum off against it

TO pay promptly to the authorities to whom they are due all rates taxes

and outgoings (h"‘ any) relating to the property including any which are

imposed after the date of this Lease (even if of a novel nature}

TO allow the Landlords to enter the property at any time to inspect the

state of it

TO allow anyone who reasonably needs access in order to exercise the

rights contained in the Second Schedule

{a) In this clause "to deal with" means to assigh, sublet, mortgage,
charge, part with possession of or share | |

{b}  Not to deal with the whole property nor with any part of it

separatefly from the rest

nge 23




4.7

4.8

4.9

4.11

4.18

4.16

4.17

4.18

TO use the property only for recreational and amenity purposes {"the
use allowed™)

TO keep the property clean and tidy at all times and for this purpose
only to use grass cutting and cultivation machinery on the property
NOT unnecessarily to fell cut down or destroy any treeé on any part of
the property

TO maintain and manage the trees on the property to the requirements
of the Landlords

NOT to remove any soil or mineral from the property withrout the
Landlords' consent

NOT unless the Landiords give coﬁsent in writing to build anything on
the property

NOT to hold an auction sale an the property

TO comply with the terms of any Act Qf Parliament regulation licence
or registration authorising or regulating how the property is used

TO do everything necessary to obtain continue and renew any licence
or registration required by law for using the property for the use
allowed

IN respect of Clauses 4.14 and 4.15. at all times to keep the Landiords
indemnified against all claims demands and liability in respect thereof
TO use the property only for the use allowed

TO allow the Landlords on giving at least seven days notice to enter the
property to inépect the state of it

TO give the Landlords promptly a copy of any notice received
concerning the property and at their expense to comply with the

requirsments of the notice as it affects the property

Page 24




4.20

4.21

4,22

4:23

4.24

IF the Landlords give the Tenants notice of any failure to do repairs or

works of maintenance required by this Lease to start the work within

two months {or immediately in case of emergency) and to proc-ee_d with

it diligently

TO insure for not less than Two Million Pounds against liability in

réspect of personal injury to or the death of any person and damage to

real and personal property arising out of the Tenants occupation and

use of the property under a policy which satisfied the conditions set out

in Clause 4.22

THE conditions with which an insurance policy must comply are:-

{a)}  the insured persons shall be the Tenénts and the interest of the
Landlords shall be noted on the policy

(b} the policy is issued by a reputable insurance office or at Lloyds

TO shdw the Landlords on demand the insurance policy required to be

maintained by Clause 4.21 together with the receipt for the last

premium and every endorsement varying the terms of the policy.

Additicnally to deliver up to the Landlords at the start of this Lease and

each year on the anniversary date of this Lease a copy of such

insurance policy receipts and demands

TO indemnify the Landlords against any ékpenses, liabilities, claims,

demands, proceedings and costs in respect of:-

{a) personal injury to or the death of any person

{b)  damage to any real or personal property

{c}  any nuisance

resulting from anything done or omitted to be done on the property and

wherever the injury damage or nuisance is suffered except to the extent

P%ge 25




4.25-

4.26

4.27

4.28

that the same is due to any act or neglect or omission of the Landlords
or of any person for whom the Landlords are responsible

IN this clause "the Planning Acis" means the Town and Country

. Planning Act 1990 and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation

Areas) Act 1799(7) and the rules, regulations and orders which are either

made under them or are continued by the Planning {Consequential

Provisions) Act 1990, as they apply from tiﬁwe to time

4.25.1 to comply with the Planning Acts as they affect the property

4.25.2 not to carry out any development of the property which
requires permission

4.25.3 if the Landlords require and at the La‘ndlords‘ expense to join
the Landlords in making representations about any proposed
development on the property or neighbouring property

4.25.4 to allow the Landlords to enter the property to comply with
any lawful requirement under the Planning Acts, even if that
restricts the enjoyment of the property

TO pay the Landlords’ costs incurred as a result of the Tenants applying

for the Landiords’ consent or ap.proval whether or not it is granted

NOT to use the property or any part of it for any of the following:-

activities which are dangerous offensive noxious illegal or immoral or

which are or may become a nuisance or annovyance to the Landiords or

to the Owner or Occupier of any neighbouring property

TO pay all expenses {including solicitors and surveyors fees} which the

Landlords incur in preparing and serving

4.28.1 a notice under Section 146 of the Law of Property Act 1925,

even if forfeiture is avoided without a Court Order

Page 26




4.29

4.30

4.31

4.28.2 a schedule of dilapidation recording failﬁre t.o give up
possession of the property in the appropriate state of repair
when this Lease ends

THAT whenever rent or other sums payable by the Tenants to the

Landlords remain unpaid after they are due for payment then such rent

or other sums shall.bear interest at the rate of four per centum per

annum above the base lending rate from time to time of National

Westminster Bank plc from the date on which such payments are due

until paid and the. amount of such interest shall be deemed to be part

of the rent reserved and recoverable as rent in arrear

TO vyield up the property at the determination of the lease period

{however it ends) in the condition required by this Lease

TO pay the Landlords’ legal costs and expenses incurred in preparing

and granting this Lease including stamp duty charged on the

Counterpart of this Lease

THE Landlords agree with the Tenants:-

5.1

SO long as the Tenants do not contravene any term of this Lease to
allow the Tenants to possess and use the property without interference
from the Landlords anyone who derives title from or any Trustees for

the Landlords

THE parties agree:-

6.1

THE Landlords are entitled to forfeit this Lease by entering any part of

.the property whenever the Tenants

6.1.1 are twenty one days late in paying rent even if it was not
formally demanded

6.1.2 have not complied with any obligation in this Lease

Page 27
69



6.1.3 when a company: it or one of them goes into liquidation, unless
that is solely for the purposes of amalgamation or reconstruction
when solvent, an administrative receiver of it is appointed or an
administration order is made in respect of it

6.1.4 when .one or more individuals is are or cne is adjudicated
bankrupt or an. interim receiver is appointed of the Tenant
Tenants or one of them

6.2  THE Landlords will continue to maintain only those parts of the property
which are so maintained at the date of this Lease future maintenance
due to further pl.anting to be carried out by the Tenants

6.3  THE forfeiture of this Lease does not cancel any outstanding obligation
which the Tenants owe the Landlords |

6.4 NOTHING contained in this Lease affects the powers of the Landiords
as Local Authority or Planning Authority or relieves the Tenants from
the necessity to obtain afl cansents and approvals that may from time
to time be required from the Landlords as Local Authority or Planning

Authority and no consent or approval given by the Landlords in that

capacity shall relieve the Tenants from any necessity to obtain any

coﬁsents or approvals from the Landlords as Landlords which may from |
time to time be required under this. Lease

6.5  THE rules as to the service of notices in Section 196 of the Law of
Property Act 1925 apply to any notice to be given under this Lease

7. IT.is hereby certified there is no Agreement for lease to which this Lease gives

efféct

IN WITNESS whereof the parties have executed this Lease as their deed

Page 28




THE FIRST SCHEDULE
'(Determination of Rent)

Throughout the lease period the yearly rent will be £150.00

THE SECOND SCHEDULE
{Rights to which the property is let subject)
1. As fco Plot 1
A Deed of Grant dated 13 March 1985 made between Dover District Council
{1) The Folkestone and District Water Company ("the Company”) {2} being an
easement in perpetuity for the Company its successors in title and its and their
respective servants and licensees at any time or times thereafter to construct
place lay and at all times thereafter to use inspect maintain cleanse repair
replace relay conduct and manage a main water pipe the approximate position
of which is shown.by a green line of the plan attached to this Lease
2, As to Plot 2
A Wayleave Consent dated 21 June 1955 made between Eastry Rural District
Counciitm The South Eastern Electricity Board {"the Board") {2) consenting to
the Board placing or laying one or more underground electric lines and any
necessary ancillary apparatus along a route the approximate position of which
is shown by a black line on the plan attached to this Lease and also to the
entry by the Board from time to time by their servants agents contractors and
. workpeople for the purpose of inspecting maintaining repairing and replacing

or removing the works or any of them

Page 29
89



THE COMMON SEAL of DOVER

DISTRICT COUNCIL was hereunto 11 203
]

affixed in the presence of:

<. e. @&.@wc.h

Authorised Chief Officer

SIGNED AS A DEED on behalf

of The Parish Council of

Avylesham named above by its .
0 4 2O

Chairman PERCY THOMAS WILSON

in the presence of:

NAME:
ADDRESS:

DESCRIPTION OR OCCUPATION:

SIGNED AS A DEED on behalf
of The Parish Council of

Aylesham named above by its

Clerk ERIC BUCKLE

in the presence of:

NAME: QG ddlugrm  Olibas
ADDRESS: bi W{(w Cw.bcm.ﬂ/ Qﬁtlm\’%

DESCRIPTION OR OCCUPATION: § ot WOayas

Page 30




OBUCED FROM THE ek TE

50 /F78  MAP WITH THE FERMESION
"HE CONTROLLER OF HER MAJEXITS: .
GFFICE; “CRAOWH COPYREHTH

AP E miem—r e oo

Avylesham Bapuist
Free Church

J kY o N
o o et
Unance Survey mapping P
Gt the'Controller of HM ™, /’ N
ice @ Grown Copyright. Unauthorised .
reproduction infringes Grown Copyright apd-ihay ~ .-
lead to prosacition orgivil proceed)

3 . s
District CounciliLicence No. LA-67778X, Dated 45/&/ ?g .
i l"l \ s 1 \_\ / g
i \“r < . // \.‘




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Agenda ltem 4

Application to register land at Montefiore Avenue,
Ramsgate as a new Town Green

A report by the Director of Environment and Waste to Kent County Council’s
Regulation Committee Member Panel on Friday 6™ February 2009.

Recommendation: | recommend that a non-statutory Public Inquiry be held into the
case to clarify the issues.

Local Members: Mr. J. Fullarton and Mr. B. Hayton Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land at Montefiore
Avenue, Ramsgate as a new Town Green from local resident Mr. M. Matthews
(“the applicant’). The application, dated 9" August 2007, was allocated the
application number 596. A plan of the site is shown at Appendix A to this report
and a copy of the application form is attached at Appendix B.

Procedure

2. The application has been made under section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 and
regulation 3 of the Commons (Registration of Town or Village Greens) (Interim
Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2007. These regulations have, since 1%
October 2008, been superseded by the Commons Registration (England)
Regulations 2008 which apply in relation to seven ‘pilot implementation areas’
only in England (of which Kent is one). The legal tests and process for
determining applications remain substantially the same.

3. Section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a Commons
Registration Authority to register land as a Village Green where it can be shown
that:

‘a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful
sports and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

4. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests:
* Use of the land has continued ‘as of right’ until at least the date of
application (section 15(2) of the Act); or
» Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than two years prior to the
date of application, e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (section
15(3) of the Act); or
« Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended before 6" April 2007 and the
application has been made within five years of the date the use ‘as of right’
ended (section 15(4) of the Act).

5. As a standard procedure set out in the regulations, the County Council must notify

the owners of the land, every local authority and any other known interested
persons. It must also publicise the application in a newspaper circulating in the

Page 33



The application site

6.

The area of land subject to this application (“the application site”) is known locally
as ‘the old bowling green’ and is situated adjacent to Montefiore Avenue at
Ramsgate. The application site is an irregular shape that is best described by
reference to the plan at Appendix A. It consists of a grass surface and is
bounded on three sides by hedges, boundary fencing and tennis courts. A Public
Footpath abuts the eastern edge of the application site (but does not form part of
it) and is delineated by way of very old post and rail fencing which is in a severe
state of disrepair. Access to the site is through the dilapidated fencing (which is
non-existent in some sections) and via a large, well-established gap at Montefiore
Avenue.

The case

7.

The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has
become a village green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the local
inhabitants for a range of recreational activities ‘as of right’ for well in excess of 20
years.

Included in the application were 17 user evidence questionnaires from local
residents asserting that the application site has been available for free and
uninhibited use for lawful sports and pastimes over the last twenty years and
beyond. A summary of the user evidence is attached at Appendix C. In addition,
a further four statements were submitted from people who have witnessed use of
the site from neighbouring properties but who themselves may not necessarily
have used it.

Also submitted in support of the application are various items of correspondence
from Thanet District Council employees, which refer to the history and current
status of the site. These include a letter from Mr. B. White (Head of Development
Services) confirming that the application site has not been used as a putting
green since before 1984.

Consultations

10.Consultations have been carried out as required and the following comments

have been received.

11. Local Councillors Mr. A. Poole and Mrs. M. Fenner wrote in support of the

application. They state that the application site is in regular usage by local
residents and has been used for informal leisure activities for a very long time,
without any hindrance of access to the site.

12.Four local residents also wrote in support of the application. They added their own

evidence of use and stated that the application site is well used by the local
community for activities such as dog walking and ball games.

Page 34



Landowner

13.The application site is owned by Thanet District Council. Mr. P. Verrall, Parks
Manager, has objected to the application on behalf of the District Council.

14.The objection is made primarily on the grounds that, until the mid-1990s, the
entire site was run as a games centre (with a defined and fenced boundary) open
to the public but requiring them to pay for use of the facilities. Regular access to
the site by local residents has only been due to repeated vandalism of the fencing
and this has only been since the mid-1990s. Prior to that time, access to the site
was with formal permission as part of a paid recreational use of the tennis,
putting, croquet or bowls facilities.

15.The objection is supported by an internal email from the District Council’s Senior
Leisure Officer, Mr. C. Tull. He explains that the site was originally a putting green
that, in 1983, was converted to a croquet lawn to enable a group of local residents
to establish a croquet club; by 1987, the club had outgrown the site and moved to
an alternative venue. He adds that until recent years, the site has always been
fenced with designated opening hours for the public to pay to use the facilities on
the site but, due to a phase of vandalism, the original fence was damaged beyond
repair and this was replaced by new fencing (using the existing concrete posts) in
the mid-1990s. This new fencing was also stolen shortly after installation and,
despite being replaced on three separate occasions, it became impossible to
maintain. The District Council have, however, continuously maintained the area
by cutting the grass throughout this period.

Legal tests

16.In dealing with an application to register a new Village Green the County Council

must consider the following criteria:

(a) Whether use of the land has been 'as of right'?

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, neighbourhood or a neighbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

(e) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up until
the date of application or meets one of the criteria set out in sections 15(3) or
15(4)?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:

(a) Whether use of the land has been 'as of right'?

17.The definition of the phrase ‘as of right’ has been considered in recent High Court
case law. Following the judgement in the Sunningwell’ case, it is now considered

that if a person uses the land for a required period of time without force, secrecy
or permission (nec vi, nec clam, nec precario), and the landowner does not stop

" R v. Oxfordshire County Council, ex p. Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 WLR 160

Page 35



him or advertise the fact that he has no right to be there, then rights are acquired
and further use becomes ‘as of right’.

18.In this case, there is no suggestion that the use of the application site by the local

residents took place in secrecy and, although those paying to use specific
facilities on the site would have had an implied permission to use the rest of the
site (for example, it could be said that someone paying to use the tennis courts
might have an implied licence to also use the other facilities on the site for which
no actual payment was required), there is no evidence that those using the site
for informal recreational activities were given formal permission to use it - be it by
way of a notice erected on the site, verbally by an employee of the District
Council, or otherwise.

19.There is, however, a question as to whether the use of the application site for

informal recreation has been by force and in this respect there is a dispute of fact
between the evidence of the applicant and that of the objector.

20.The evidence of the recreational users submitted in support of the application

21.

suggests that there has been uninterrupted use of the application site without any
hindrance to access over a period well in excess of 20 years. In the majority of
cases, access to the application site has been via the Public Footpath which
abuts the site and when asked in the user evidence questionnaire how they
gained access to the application site, the recreational users gave answers such
as ‘open access from the public right of way’, ‘walk in off pavement’ and ‘walked
on from the footpath which runs adjacent.

This evidence is supported by the applicant, who has lived opposite the site since
1979 and explains that when he first moved to the property the site was no longer
used as a bowling green. He states that ‘there has been unimpeded access from
both the public right of way and from the [footway] of Montefiore Avenue since
approximately that date’ and also makes the point that there must have been
gaps in the fencing because otherwise the gang mowers used to cut the grass on
the application site would not have been able to access the land.

22.However, the objector refers to the presence of fencing along the edge of the site

which would have precluded access to it during the relevant 20 year period.
Although the District Council accepts that the fencing has been vandalised on a
number of occasions, it states that it has repeatedly made attempts to repair this
damage.

23.This appears to conflict with the objector’'s own admission that no gates exist from

the tennis courts onto the application site and thus, when tennis balls have been
hit over the tennis court fencing (and on to the application site), the only means of
access to retrieve the lost tennis balls has been to exit the tennis courts onto
Montefiore Avenue and take the easiest route onto the application site. This
would seem to suggest that access onto the application site was not restricted,
although it does not conclusively prove the non-existence of the fencing around
the application site (as tennis players may have climbed over the fencing to gain
access).

Page 36



24.There is therefore a degree of uncertainty regarding the status of the fencing
around the perimeter of the site and the ease with which non-paying recreational
users gained access to the application site. The fact that access to the application
site was required for gang mowers to carry out routine maintenance and for tennis
players retrieving lost tennis balls suggests that the fencing was not as
continuous or permanent as the District Council suggests. However, the user
evidence also requires more detailed clarification to confirm that there were no
periods during which the fencing was completely continuous, as is suggested by
the District Council.

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

25.Lawful sports and pastimes can be commonplace activities including dog walking,
children playing, picnicking and kite-flying. Legal principle does not require that
rights of this nature be limited to certain ancient pastimes (such as maypole
dancing) or for organised sports or communal activities to have taken place;
solitary and informal kinds of recreation are equally as valid.

26.In this case, the evidence demonstrates that a range of recreational activities
have taken place on the land, including dog-walking and training, nature-watching
and playing with children. The table summarising evidence of use by local
residents at Appendix C shows the full range of activities claimed to have taken
place.

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, neighbourhood or a neighbourhood within a locality?

27.The definition of locality for the purposes of a village green application has been
the subject of much debate in the courts and there is still no definite rule to be
applied. In the Cheltenham Builders? case, it was considered that “...at the very
least, Parliament required the users of the land to be the inhabitants of
somewhere that could sensibly be described as a locality... there has to be, in my
judgement, a sufficiently cohesive entity which is capable of definition’. The judge
later went on to suggest that this might mean that locality should normally
constitute ‘some legally recognised administrative division of the county’.

28. Although it is accepted that, in all probability, only those living closest to a piece of
land are likely to use it for recreational purposes, there is still a requirement for
the purposes of Village Green registration to show that the land has been used by
the residents of a defined locality (or neighbourhood) or, as suggested by LJ Pill
in a case known as Steed®, ‘something more than a place or geographical area —
rather a distinct and identifiable community such as might lay reasonable claim to
a town or village green’.

29.At part 6 of the application form, the applicant specifies the locality as ‘East
Clifff Dumpton’. In a subsequent letter, the applicant suggests that the application
site might better be described by way of being situated in a ‘neighbourhood’ (i.e.
‘East Clifff Dumpton’ or ‘King George VI park area’) within a ‘locality’ (i.e.

’R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council (2003) EWHC 2803
* R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed and another (1996) 75 P&CR 102

Page 37



Ramsgate). In either case, it does not matter that the applicant has not precisely
defined the correct locality in his application; the burden is not on the applicant to
establish the correct locality at the time of application, but rather on the
Registration Authority to satisfy itself that there is a relevant locality (or
neighbourhood) at the time of registration®. The right to use a Village Green is
restricted to the inhabitants of a locality or neighbourhood and it is therefore
important to be able to define this area with a degree of accuracy so that the
group of people to whom the recreational rights are attached can be identified.

30. The application site lies within the District Council ward of Sir Moses Montefiore.

31

This is the sort of legally recognised administrative unit that is entirely capable of
being used to define the surrounding locality. However, the ward covers a large
area and in this case there may be a need to identify a smaller area which would
more accurately describe the immediate neighbourhood in which users of the
applications site reside. It is unclear as to whether the ‘King George VI park area’
is a locally recognised entity that would be sufficiently descriptive to identify those
with a right to use the application site.

.Given the proposed recommendation, it is not necessary to conclude on this issue

as this is a point which could easily be clarified at a Public Inquiry and the exact
locality (or neighbourhood) would become clear during the course of hearing the
witness evidence. It is evident that there is defined locality but there is a question
as to whether there is a need to establish a sufficiently ‘distinct and identifiable
community’ that would form a neighbourhood. This latter point requires further
clarification.

(d) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

32.1n order to qualify for registration, it must be shown that the land in question has

been used for a full period of twenty years up until the date of application. In this
case, the application was submitted in 2007 and therefore the relevant twenty-
year period (“the material period”) is 1987 to 2007.

33.From the user evidence submitted, there appears to have been use of the land

over a considerable period dating back far beyond 1987. Most of the withesses
have known the land in question for well over 20 years, with at least two having
lived in the area for over 40 years. In addition, all of the users state in their
questionnaires that they have withessed other people using the land for a range
of recreational activities.

34.However, due to the questions regarding the fencing of the land, it is not possible

to conclude with any certainty (on the evidence currently available) that the use
has been for a full and uninterrupted period of 20 years. There is no specific
reference in the user evidence regarding whether use of the land has been
uninterrupted and this is a point which requires further clarification.

* Oxfordshire County Council v Oxford City Council [2006] UKHL 25

Page 38



(e) Whether use of the land by the inhabitants is continuing up until the date of
application?

35.The Commons Act 2006 introduces a number of transitional arrangements
regarding the actual use of the land in relation to the making of the application to
register it as a Village Green. These are set out at paragraph 4 above.

36.1In this case, there is no suggestion that the use of the land by those who have
submitted user evidence statements ceased prior to the making of the application.
The application appears to have been prompted by concerns regarding the future
development of the site rather than any recent attempts to deny access to the
site. There is no evidence that use of the application site by the local residents
had ceased prior to the making of the application. Therefore, it appears that use
of the land has continued up until the date of application and as such it is not
necessary to consider the other tests set out in sections 15(3) and 15(4) of the
Act.

Conclusion

37.Although the relevant regulations® provide a framework for the initial stages of
processing the application (e.g. advertising the application, dealing with
objections etc), they provide little guidance with regard to the procedure that a
Commons Registration Authority should follow in considering and determining the
application. In recent times it has become relatively commonplace, in cases which
are particularly emotive of where the application turns on disputed issues of fact,
for Registration Authorities to conduct a non-statutory Public Inquiry, which would
involve appointing an independent Inspector to hear the relevant evidence and
report his/her findings back to the Registration Authority.

38.Such an approach has received positive approval by the Courts, most notably in
the Whitmey?® case in which Waller LJ said this: ‘the registration authority has to
consider both the interests of the landowner and the possible interest of the local
inhabitants. That means that there should not be any presumption in favour of
registration or any presumption against registration. It will mean that, in any case
where there is a serious dispute, a registration authority will almost invariably
need to appoint an independent expert to hold a public inquiry, and find the
requisite facts, in order to obtain the proper advice before registration’.

39.As was famously quoted by the judge in another High Court case’, ‘it is no trivial
matter for a landowner to have land, whether in public or private ownership,
registered as a town green...’. This means that it is of paramount importance for a
Registration Authority to ensure that, before taking a decision, it has all of the
relevant facts available upon which to base a sound decision. It should be
recalled that the only means of appeal against the Registration Authority’s
decision is by way of a Judicial Review in the High Court.

® Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008
° R (Whitmey) v Commons Commissioners [2004] EWCA Civ 951
" R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed (1996) 75 P & CR 102

Page 39



40.In this case, there is a serious dispute of fact with regard to the existence and
condition of the fencing around the perimeter of the application site. This is a point
which is key to the case and has a significant impact on whether use of the
application site has been continuous and ‘as of right’ over the material period.
There is also an issue to be addressed with regard to establishing the relevant
locality or neighbourhood. A Public Inquiry would allow witnesses to give more
detailed evidence that could be subject to relevant questions from the Inspector.
This would provide a greater clarity to the user evidence than is currently
available in paper form and enable to Registration Authority to come to a more
informed decision on the case.

Recommendations

41.1 therefore recommend that a non-statutory Public Inquiry be held into the case to
clarify the issues.

Accountable Officer:

Dr. Linda Davies — Tel: 01622 221500 or Email: linda.davies@kent.gov.uk

Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221511 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the Environment and Waste
Division, Environment and Regeneration Directorate, Invicta House, County Hall,
Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for further details.

Background documents
APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site

APPENDIX B — Copy of application form
APPENDIX C — Table summarising user evidence

Page 40




APPENDIX A:

Plan showing application site
(land known locally as ‘the old bowling
green’ at Montefiore Avenue at Ramsgate)

166000 Hovooe
166000 GOO000

| Parkside

Land subject to village green application
W E at Montefiore Avenue, Ramsgate

5
Scale 1:1250 ' 2




f—

Commons Act 2006: Section 15
Application for the registratio

APPENDIX B:
Copy of application form

Village Green

Official stamp of registration authority
indicating valid date of receipt:

Application number:

e e ——

COMMONS ACT 2006
KENT COUNTY COUNCIL
-REGISTRATION AUTHORITY

16 AUG 2007

Register unit No(s):

596

VG number aliocated at registraticn:'

(CRA to complete only If application is succesé‘fu!)

Applicants are advised to read the ‘Guidance Notes for the completion of an Applicaﬁon for the Registration of
land as a Town or Village Green® and to note the following:

+ Al applicands should complete questions 1-6 and 10-11.

» Applicants applying for registration under section 15(1) of the 2006 Act shoutd, in addition, complete questions 7-8.
Section 15(1) enables any person to apply to register land as a green where the criteria for regisiralion in section

15(2), (3) or (4) apply.

« Applicants applying for voluntary regisiration under section 15(8) should, in addition, complete quesﬁ@n g

A

J

Nofe 1

Insert name of
ragistration
authority.

1. Reglstration Authority

To the

| KENf CeudT Ceuscrr

Eapslonsmenst & Ecoslomy
IVICTA. House, CounTy Hac.
MaoaTonE . MEI4  IXX

Page 42




1 2. Name and address of the applicant

Note 2

Fthereis more than | Name: | Mhenagr, GCecce TWeneaick MAFrues .

ong applicant, fist all
names. Flease use a
soparale sheet if

necessary, Statethe | Full postal address:

full titte of the -
organisation if 2 body 1§ Momterioge Aveaue
corporste OF MSCHTE
unincorporate. Qﬁ 4T
if question 3 is nol Postcode CTH K&,
completed aif .
correspondence and
nolices wilf be sent 1o Telephone number:; :
the first named (i), hational dialling code)] 1 BF-3 - SDITTO
applicant.

Fax number: —

({ingl. national dialling code)

E-mail address: mmatthews ©Diee -org-uk.

\'ml

3. Name and address of solicitor, if any

Note 3

This queston shouid Name: h&hﬁ& -
ba completed if &

soficitor is instructed Firm:

for the purposes of the .

application. ff so af!
correspondence and | Full postal address:
nofices wilf be sent to
the parson or firm
named here.

Post code

Telephone number.
{incl. national dialiing code}

Fax number:
{incl. nationa| dialling code)

E-mail address:

Page 43




Note 4

For further advice on
the criteria and
qualifing dales for
registration please sea
section 4 of the
Guithance Noles.

* Saction 15(6)
enabies any period of
stetutory doswre
where access fothe
fand js denied to b
disregardod in
determining the 20
Year pariod.

4. Basis of application for registration and qualifying criteria

If you are the landowner and are seeking voluntarily to register your land
piease tick this box and move to question 5.

Application made under section 15(8):

If the application is made under section 15(1) of the Act, please tick one of
the following boxes to indicate which particular subsection and gualifying
criterion applies to the case.

Section 15(2) applies: v

Section 15(3) applies:

Section 15{4) applies:

If section 15(3) or (4) applies please indicate the date on which you consider
that use as of right ended.

If section 15(6)* applies please indicate the period of statutory closure {if
any) which needs to be disregarded.

Page 44



Note &

The accormpanying
map muist be &t &
scale of atleast
1:2,500 and show the
land by gistinctive
colouring to enable 1o
# to be ciearly
identifiad.

" Onfy complele if the

7 land is afready

registored as common
jand.

Nole 6

it may be possifie to
indicate the focality of
tha green by reforence
o an administrative
area, such as & parish
or dectoral ward, or
other area suiliciently
defined by nama {such
a5 a village of skeath.
ifihis is nol possible a
map should be
provided on which 2
faoaiity or
neighbotirhood is
marked clearfy.

5. Description and particulars of the area of land in respect of which
application for registration is made

Name by which usually known:

b2y M@e&re"\&Q . vy oy

The old Pu‘ﬂ'
= Moe B

3@45’3 Syeen

Location:

Mowresicge R ELavsGATE.

Shown in colour on the map which is marked and attached to the statutory
declaration.

Commeon land register unit humber (if relevant) *

8. Locality or neighbourhood within a locality in respect of which the
application is made

Please show the locality or neighbourhood within the locality to which the
claimed green relates, either by writing the administrative area or
geographical area by name below, or by aftaching a map on which the area is
clearly marked:

Since lhe sife (S on Ha
Boycder it 78 deawéed ad k'csf C/f

/ Dusplon. It 15 mowe oefied

Tick here if map attached: E"

Page 45




RO

7. Justification for application to register the land as a town or village
green

Note 7

Applicants shoufd
provide a summary of
the case for
registration here and
enclose a separate fufl |
statement and ali other
evidence ihcluding any
Witness statements in
support of the
application.

This information Is not
needed it a lantdowner
is applying lo registar
tha fand 25 2 grean
under section 15(8).

See_ dffached glatemedt

Page 46




p—

Note 8
Fiease lise g separale
shoet If necessary.

Where relevant include
reference o titte
nigmbars in tha register
oftitle hetd by the
Land Registry.

ff o one has been
fdentifed fn this
soction you shoufd
wiife “none”

This information is not
needed if a fandowner
is applying to register
the fand a5 2 green
undsr seclion 15{5).

Nole 9

iist aff stich
daclarations that
aceompany the
application. If none Js
required, witte ‘nona”.

This irformation Is #ol
necded if an
appiication is baing
made to register the
iand as 2 green under
saction 15{1).

Note 10

List alf supporing
documeants and maps
accompanying the
application. if none,
witte o™

Piaase use a separato
sheet it necessay.

8. Name and address of every person whom the applicant belleves to be
an owner, lessee, tenant or occupier of any part of the land claimed to

be a town or village green

AHasseT Dirsg@ict Counlci .

9. Voluntary registration — declarations of censent from ‘relevant
fleaseholder’, and of the proprietor of any ‘relevant charge’ over the land

10. Suppotting documentation

Seo Se.Par:J& Sheet.

Page 47



Note 11

if there are any other.
mattars which should
be brought to the
attertion of the
rogistration suthority
{in particular it 2
person interested in
the fand is expected to
chaflenge the
gppication for
ragistration). Full
detafls should be given
here o on g sepafate
sheet if necossary.

Nole 12
The application st
be signed by each
individual applicant, or
by the authorised
officer of an applicant
which Is & body
corporate or
UAFRCORpOrale.

11. Any other information relating to the application

i

Date:

Signatures:

S]% | 2ee @ 7.

REMINDER TO APPLICANT

You are advised to keep a copy of the application and all associated documentation.
Applicants should be aware that sighature of the statutery declaration is a sworn statement
of truth in presenting the application and accompanying evidence. The making of a false
statement for the purposes of this application may render the maker liable to prosecution.

Data Protection Act 1998

The application and any representations made cannot be treated as confidential. To determine the
application it will be necessary for the registration authority fo disclose information recefved from
vou to others, which may incitide other local authorities, Govemnment Departments, public bodies,
other organisations and members of the public.

Page 48 '




Statutory Declaration in Support

! insert full name
{(aid address if not
given in the
appiication form).

? Delote and adapt
as necessary.

® Insert name if
y Applicable

4 Complete oniyin
the case of
voluntary
registration {stiike
through if this is not
refevant)

teg

To be made by the applicant, or by one of the applicants, or by his or
their solicltor, or, if the applicant is a body corporafe or unincorporate,
by its solicitor, or by the person who signed the application.

b . solemnly and sincerely declare as follows:—

M’f’ﬁﬁf&s wgﬁféﬁag tiepeicis i%’ﬁéﬂ’m@«@ﬁ

1.2 {am {(the person {one-of-the-persons} who (has) (have} sighed
the foregoing application)) ({the-selicitorte-({the-applicant {>-ene-oftire

applicantsy).

2. The facts set out in the application form are to the best of my

- knowledge and belief fully and truly stated and | am not aware of any

other fact which should be brought to the attention of the registration
authority as likely {o affect its decision on this application, nor of any
document relating to the matter other than those {if any) mentioned in
parts 10 and 11 of the application.

3. The map now produced as part of this declaration is the map
referred to in part & of the application.

4.* | hereby apply u sectlcn 15 8)-oftlie Commons Agt.206670

registar as a the tand | d on the map andthat is in my
cwne r|:>’/g ave pr the fofiowngn cestary declarations of
nsent:

{iYa declal;aﬁtflgalefﬁvﬁersmp of the-tand erl”/
{11)2;169}] ion that all necessary consents fromt avant

lder or pro ietof of any relevant chargeover the tand have

Canff

Page 49




4 Continued been received and are exhibited with this declaration; or
(i) where no such consents are required, a declaration to that effect.

And | make this solamn declaration, conscientiously believing the
same to ba true, and by virtue of the Statutory Declarations Act 1838,

Mo T Mofeg

Declared by the said Micla et é"io.«f
A A u?.-c.-a.?f:_ Fa ff boess

at Yl Quee. Stveor

R fou San—s Signature of Declarant

Tt Nt Y n Syl N il Nt

this q< day of /1 ﬂ(fﬂ-’" ? )

S

Before me ™
e AN ( A
- Signature: ~- ,
M mtl o B vengm, I Aﬁ‘e—‘w
K Boo4Fls S ity

Address:

Qualification:

*  The statutory declaration must be made before a justice of the peace, practising
solicitor, commissioner for oaths or notary public.

Signature of the statutory declaration is a sworn statement of truth in presenting the
application and accompanying evidence,

REMINDER TO OFFICER TAKING DECLARATION:

Ploase initial afl afterations and mark any map as an exhibit

Page 50




-3
=
. 4
e B
W
LN &
] M
NG Y
W@..»MFW
S 3
o3 ~
mﬁwﬁq w.ﬂ
S S
NN
~ .
R o
2oy *:
>
23 8
£ L
A

El Sub Sta

¥tlan 7&

-~

A b AAVIEC

M
'émubu.

Bt 38-Gdn

Pavilion

392

3910

RAMSGATE
RAMSGATE MB & CP

35998E YL

SIR MOSES MONTEFIORE WARD

Page 51

(I 639000m




Continuation sheet Form 44 Section 7. (Justification of apolication to register land
as a Town Green) Montefiore Avenue Ramsqgate

Background

The site that is the subject of this registration application was originaily acquired by the
Ramsgate Bowling Club Ltd in 1913 and was used as a putting green. Ramsgate
Borough Council purchased the whole site including the bowling green and tennis courts
in 1948, following the insolvency of the bowling club. Land Registry details show this site
10 be hetd as normai freehold land. Ramsgaie Borougn Councii and supsequently
Thanet District Council operated this site along with the adjacent leisure facilities until
probably the late 70's when the putling green ceased to be used. Possibly around that
time portions of the fence and hedges were removed to allow council workers access to
the site with self propelled gang mowers from the adjacent public footpaths which run
down one side of the site, as there are no gates to this site. There has been unimpeded
access from both the public right of way and from the footpath of Montefiore Avenue
since approximately that date. It is still referred to as “the old putting green” by some
users. It is now bordered on the Northerly side by a nature reserve created by the local

primary school.

It is worth pointing out that in many cases witness statements have been made by cne
member of a household, the answers however apply equally to the spouse. In this
submission it is not intended to summarise all of the evidence since it is contained in the
witness statements but hopefully to demonstrate that care has been taken to address
the requirements of the law relating to registration.

Evidence statemenis have been witnessed where praciicable by a Juslice of the Peace.
However in cases where this has not been possible the applicant has witnessed them
using his status as a Chartered Engineer.

List of Witness Statements Appendix 2.

The following submissions fall into the category of individuals who have used this site for
more than 20 years and who still use it. The number in brackets refers to the evidence

questionnaire reference number.

Mrs Christine Sackett (1)
Mrs Lorna Farley (2)

Mr Peter Flint (3)

Mrs Rhoda Kah! (5}

Mr James Carey (6)

Mr John Chailinor (8)

Mrs Pat Haywood (9)

Mrs Rita Smith (10)

Mr Gary Easton (12)

Mr D. W. Bellingham. (14)
Mr William McKnight (15)
Mr Dave Welch (16)

Mr Michael Matithews (20} Applicani.

Continuation Sheet Section 7 Page 1

Page 52




List of Witness Statements Appendix 3. -

The following submissions fall into the category of individuals who have either used this
site for less than 20 years and who still use it or whose use of the site is not continuous.
The number in brackets refers to the evidence questionnaire reference number.

Mrs Barbara Ford {4)

Mr Melvyn Robinson (7)

Mr Robert Hopkins (13)

Mr Hall (17) evidence to folfow.

List of Witness Statements Appendix 4.

The following submissions fall into the category of individuals who have observed that
others have used the site for 20 years or more but who have not themselves used it to
any appreciable degree. The number in brackets refers to the submission reference |

number.
Mrs Angela Band (18)

Mrs Fiona Wefare {11)
Tom & Sally Band (19)

General remarks on the withess statements

The act requires that it is demonstrated that a significant number of people *of any
locality’ or “of any neighbourhood within a locality’. Many of the local residents who have
supplied evidence have fived within several hundred metres of this site for very
substantial periods of time and have used the site well in excess of the 20 years
demanded by the act. it is anticipated that more witnesses will corme forward during the

formal consultation process.

The statements show that there is a stable and substantial comm unity of people living
close to this site who use it for “lawful sports and pastimes”. This in turn reinforces the
concept of a stable and identifiable local community who are served by this piece of
open space and who value their open spaces and enjoy living in the locality. The
community boundary shown on the map shows the neighbourhood that is served by this
site that is about 600 metres radialy from the site. It includes many of the features of an
identifiable community (Doctors surgery, pub efc. etc) in reality most of the evidence
from users comes from people living closer than the boundary drawn on the map. ltis
also clear that the cohort of peopie who use this site is being added to as people move
into the area and choose to use it.

The Act requires users to have indulged in using this site “as of right” and just a small
sample of the answers show that the users felt entitled to walk onto the land from the

footpath.

For example an answer from Mrs Kahl to question 19 (Did you ever ask permission)
reply “No | did not need to” another answer to the same question Mrs Farley, “No
because its all open ground” and so on.

Coniinuation Sheet Section 7 Page 2

Page 53




The requirements of use “without force” and “without secrecy” are fairly self evident
given the age profile of many of the withesses. | do not imagine many of them would
scale fences (if there were any ) in the middle of the night to use this site. In addition the
site is.in full view of users of the bowling green, and public footpaths.

However it would be misleading to assume that the only “lawful sport and pastime” that
occur on the site is dog walking. It has proven much more difficult in the time available to
identify the children who play on the site, as they tend tc be more transitory than the
more established retired users. They play, they grow up and move on but many of the
witnesses refer to taking children and grandchildren onto the site. :

It rnay be worthwhile also explaining why many users choose 1o use this site given the
proximity of the local park. Whilst this is not technicaily relevant to the registration
process [ think the reasons show that leisure users are quite sophisticated in their
choices. Some explanations are in the questionnaire but not all.

Typical answers as to why they used this site were:-

“It's enclosed on 3 sides so my dog can’t run away”
‘Its peaceful without the hurly-burly of the main park as my dog is old”
“it's flat, out of the wind sc | am not frightened to fall over in wet weather as the park

gets very slippery”
“t like to sit, it's so peaceful”

itis clear that users adjust their usage according to the time of day weather and so on.

List of Evidence Appendix 5.

A further class of evidence has been derived using direct information supplied by Thanet
District Council as a result of direct enquiry and secondary sources based on research
using the Freedom of Information Act.

In the first category is a letter from Mr Brian White (Head of Development Services at
TDC) who confirms that the site has not been a putting green since before 1984,
Similarly an Email from Mr Paul Verrall (Parks & Open Spaces Development Manager)
is the source of this information as 1984 was the date when he became responsible for
this site. He confirms it was “not in use in 1984”. This suggests the evidence supplied in
the questionnaires by local residents who date the closure of the putting green as mid to
late seventies is trustworthy.

Emails from Mr Doug Brown describe this site as “Open Space” and add that because of
this fact development of this site would be a departure from the local plan and it would
require full council approval. As TDC'’s Development Control Manager it is reasonabie to
assume Mr Brown clearly understands what constitutes “Open Space”. Reference to the
focal plan refers to policy CC5 that includes this site as a “green wedge”; this policy is
reproduced in full in Appendix 5. It is also worth noting that TDC have rigorously
enforced this policy in numerous planning decisions over the years.

This evidence supports the view that within senior TDC officers this site is clearly
regarded as open space. This is a considered view by planning professionals and
consistent with the lay evidence contained in the registration aopiication.

Confinuation Sheet Section 7 Page 3

Page 54




APPENDIX C

dence

ing user evi

Table summaris

Page 55

buiyolem
pue| 8y} 2sn 0} uoissiuliad Aep ainjeu ‘|lequoo; (s1eah gz) anuaAy
payse 0 pabusjieys usag JoAdsN palels 10N Jadsawn g -2 ‘Bunjiem Boa | /002 — 9961 WEYOIAN | USIPM "d TN
‘puB| 941 &sh o} uoissiuliad Buixe|al {s1eah j¢)
payse Jo pabuajeys uaaq JsasN anusAy 2J01SIUO Areq ‘Bunjem Boq | Z00Z - 0/61 peod AN | Yypws "y "SI
sjuual Bulyolem
SLNCY SIUUD) ‘URIPIIYD Upm
pug| ay} &sn o} uoissiuuad 10 apis oy} Buole HooM Buifeld ‘Bunetal (s1eah 0g) BNUBAY naoes
peyse Jo pabua|ieyo usaq isasN SNUSAY 2JOLSIION B SOl [RIOADS ‘Bupem Boq | 2002 ~ /G61L aloduoN "0 "SI
puUE| 2y} 3sn 0] uaIssiwIad uonealoal {s1ealh z¢) oAl Yied uosuIgoy
payse Jo pabug|eys usaq JaraN yrediooy wiod4 pojEls 10N pue ssweb Alwed | J00Z —G/6L uoidwng W IN
pue| ayl asn 0} uolssiwad (siedh 27) aAl( Yed BN
poyse Jo pabusjjeys Usaq JoasN Yredjoo; wiot4 palels 10N Buiyoyem aimen | 2002 — G861 uoidwng A AN
pue| 8y} 8sn o uoissiuad yiediooy Jo HOOM BuiAly {sieah ng) anuasy SMaUNen
payse Jo pabus|eys usaq JaAsN SNUSAY 2I01S)UOK Jad 2ou0 )se3} 1Y a1y ‘Bupem Bog | 2002 — /S6L alo18luoIN ‘W IN
S4plMm
pue| 8y} ash o} uolssiuad yredjooy Bulfolua ‘Bunjem (siesh ¢g) anusay
payse Jo pabusjjeyo usaqg JeaaN | Ag soueius ybnosyy Allep jsouy pue Buiuiely Bog | 2002 - ¥861 WEUIA | UeM "o "SI
pue| @y} asn 0} uc|ssiwiad uaippiyopuetb GEED) peoy supjdoy
payse Jo pabus|eys usaqg JaasN KemAaje wol pa1E1s JON Y Buniiepn | 2002 — /661 PoOMITEAA o I
uonesioal
‘pasolo uaaaf Bugind syj souls yrediooy pue 3s51010X%8 {sieah g7) anuany premAel
pue| 2y} Buish ajdoad J18yjo UeeS 'BUCN | WOJ) pUB| DJUO HBM s|geleA ‘Bop BupiiBpAA | 2002 — 2861 LUEUMDIAA d "SI
puej ayj 2@sn 0} uoissiuad buuresy (s1eah 1) pEOY
payse Jo pabuajjeys usag IassN AemAs|e ongnd yoam jad sawn ¢ | pue Buisiosaxs Boag | 2002 — 0002 ucsaleH leH "s 4N
pue| 8y} asn o} uoissiLad uonexe|al ‘sojuoid (sieah B) dnusAY
payse Jo pabus|ayo useq lorsN pS1els 10N Aeq ‘Bunyiem Boq | 200Z — 9661 WEYDIAA | pIOo4 g "SI
pue| 8y} 8sn 0] uoissiLiad Bupyem Bop '[|eqioo) (s1eah og) peoy
payse J0 pabus|eyd useq JanaN yyedoo} wo.4 AenBas aunt | pue siuus) Bulyaepn | 2002 - 2261 uosalaH M d I
pUE| &y} 28N 0} uoissiwiad : mou Ajjuanbaly {siead g7) snuaAy
payse Jo pabug|eyo usaq 1sAaN yrediooy Buory alow — ajgeueA Bunyem Boq | 200Z — Z86L aloyswop | Asped =7 "SI
puUB| 8y} osn o} uoissiuliad (sieeh /1) peoy
payse Jo pabugjeys uaag iaasN Yedioo) wol4 palels JON Buixejpy | 2002 — 0661 poomjeps | uolsex "o I
uosess
‘pue| ayy Buisn uo Buipuadap pHyo e se Buiied (s1eah gy) anq xed Jourreysn
g|doad Jayio uaes Aleinbol seH "2uUoN SNUBAY SI0)3IUOIN a|geLeA ‘Bunjjem Boq | Z00% — Z96L uojdwing AN
Burem
pue| ayj asn o} ucissiulad yrediooy Bop ‘uaipiyo (sieah 52) ana Nied
payse 1o pabus|eyo ussq JorsN Loy} ssaooe uadp palels 10N yum Buifeld | 200z — 8761 ucidwng Aates i
yied au jo ped pue usalb yiedjood 21and (sieaf 1.2) anuany weybuag
oi|gnd B sem puB| PaLINSSY "BUON BU} WoJ} ssa00y pelels 10N eoJe Aejd ‘ouold | /002 - 961 LLUBUYOIAA an
SLININWINOD WIHLO ANV IASN 35N 40 asn 40
Ol SINIHHI1L3A /STONITTIVHO AONINODINL SAILIAILDY aold3id S$S3¥AAY JINVN

§$8303V



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



	Agenda
	3 Application to register land known as "The Market Square" at Aylesham as a new Village Green.
	4 Application to register land at Montefiore Avenue, Ramsgate as a new Town Green.

